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CRANDFATHER HAM

o

' Benjanin Ham was of the £ifth generation in descent from Willism Ham
ho came from England to New England and was in Exeter in 1644, He reached
th in 1646, In 1652 the selectmen of Strawberry Bank, as Portsmouth
n ealled, examined the old town records and crossed off what was not
. roved by them. Among the entries that remained was the following: "It
1s granted that each inhabitant is to have lots of land according to the
rder written,* and among the names is that of William ¥Ham (spelled Hame)
MM. Later records show that he was a land owner in 1680,

His son Matthew settled on the Isles of Shoals, ten miles off Portse
th and had two sons, John and Thomas,

©John settled in Newington, M. H., and had seversl sons, one of whom
S ok 0. who was' our’ grest-grandfathut. Tradition says that he went
m Portemouth to what is now the village of Farmington taking his worldly
‘on § wheelbarrow although that seems an impossidility., He took up or
all the land on which the village of Farmington now stands. The little
nt was then known as The Dock, The date of his arrival there is not
Inown but 1t was undoubtedly while that region was a part of the northwest
ish of Rochester, for it was not until 1798 that the town of Farmington
88 incorporated. The town lies in the valley betwsen Milton Ridge and New
Ridge, sbout eighteen miles northwest of Dover, on the rosd to Lake
pesaukes, which is some tAn miles further on. His house stood on the
1 north of the Dock, a fine location which remained in the family wntdl

8 early 1900s. He was a farmer and @ prosperous man for those times, as
the of his property totaled 33,606,17. He had five sons, Thomas,
Abner, Benjamdn and Moses, and two daughters, Sarah and Mary. IMs
11 is dated June 29, 1811, and the inventory of his property was recorded
he probate court held in Dover on Docember 15, 1612, when his son Joseph,

.‘
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was executor, made oath that the inventory contains all the estate of

bo said John Ham that had come to his knowledge. itis will is interesting
:‘bmmmumamm,:m,nmmmm; to his

i ibner he gave $200 and orié good feather bed and bedding., Abner promptly

' Muwm,m»mmhdmm.
‘w0 daughters were given meney, to Sarah $300 and household furnishings

to Mary §100 and furnishings. Today it is amusing to note the exact

division of beds, bedding (ineluding the cords), and other household goods

but these things had been acquired by hard work and were of great value,

In the division of his land he gave his son Thomas the land in the

m part of his holdings, where the Boston and Maine Reilroad used to be.
‘18 sald to have been an easy-going farmer with a large family of children.
eph (generally known as Col. Joseph) had the land lying west of the Province
now North Main Street. Benjamin and Moses had the homestead east of this
s With the house and farm bulldings. They were also the residuary legatees
d had a1l the stock and farm implements. The inventory of great-grandfather's
property shows that Benjamin had 97 acres of land and Moses 75 acres. I suppose
two farms were carried on as a unit, for Moses was what today we call a re=
sd ¢hild, I remember him as a burly man dressed in overalls with a red ban-
around his neck. After his father's death he lived with his brother Thomas,
as he was not well cared for there his nephew Abner (our Uncle Doctor) took
to the homestead where he lived the rest of his life and was a useful member
[ the fanily for he did the chores, chopped woo# and did farm work. He used

I ' quaint expressions and one was to preface his remarks with the word "like."
Sunday morning he was chopping wood and Aunt Annie reminded him that it was
unday, '"Well," he said, "like you didn't have beans this morning." He died
1867 at the age of seventy and was buried in the family cemetery on the farm.
his death his farm was sold and the money divided among his heirs.
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Our grandfather, Denjusin Ham, was born in 1792. In 1017 he married
Pray of Lebanon, Maine, and they had six children, Mary Amn', Abner,
Benjamin, Charles and Abigail (owr mother).

~ From & sketch of the history of Fammington we learn that in 1792 The Dook
nmunmuﬂetmmwwm,mwwmm-mz
st. MMMMMWMMﬂuMMWaW
h;mnmmm:wmmﬂma&mlmwwm
“Wox-o. rhemmmmmnmh&yrm
Immxymmnmmumumwmr
- ‘unot.nm. amhmmdm,mmmmuw-
'mmmnmmmmamm. He died in November,

| mmm-tmmmmmmmmmmnw
| m)bomnmmmum Hie was working in the woods getting
out 1ogs. m-unmmmnmmnmshw.mvmm«a

gveloped into t III 1 : &
i Th
T%dfﬁ;@gterumdadsmmmwwmamm

o ressuber hin clearly. m“mmmwumummnm
mmmmm.mmmpm. To us he is only a
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mm Pray, the daughter of Benjmmin Pray and ibigall (Libby) Pray,
inhbm,Mu,mMoberlO,l?B%motMlumm ie
mumumrwu(mmm)bmmmaumofmnm
' Mmlubbyrrwma Hayes of Farmington and he was
u&rwu,whid:mbomabbmﬁ.mtarmir. She 1ived to be
rm:mammwwmmmmn She taught Mary Ann to sew,
EJ:IM Mnshrhtinmunmimmtmﬂthmmmhor
thing death and she said, "Well, death is moloncholy."
" nmmmmarom-mrm'amzyamrarm-uum
mm;mmmmmmuwmmmaumm
mmm»mm,mmummmmu,ummw
Wmhdudl* She also remembered the hardships which Jefferson's
Mummmmunmw WMumdaMdny
“ ?)mmmmmamsmmw.
'hxmmm-dwmunnrmﬂamn.a.,muuuummt
ﬂpmzmmwmmmmngm- sh.mnwmm
msmmamnnptmmannammn. She had a
mwmmmm I remember her when she was well over
umwmm«mmmwmmmmm.mg
hmmnqw&ngmeo.‘
"'amnmmumm,ﬂmmm,mom.num
maﬂﬂummatbmafwmmwurthnduthofhormm,uth
mr;fmtormxrmppon,mouuo&mmtam, but she was not
wumwmwmwmm The children were Mary Ann
Bed Awite), born 1618; Abner, bern 1619; Susan, born 1621; Benjanin Pranklin,
"; uium, born and Abigail, born Mareh 1, 1626,

g%tﬁfmuﬁtﬁh@mﬂ%mﬁ;ﬂ“ﬂ,m&:mmm
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then by some of the Ham relatives by what Orandmother thought were unfair
ictices. The house was beyond repair so in 1829 Grandwother bullt a new
house on the site of the old one, on the knoll north of the village, It was

o that we called the "old house",

For years Grandmother leased the farm taking half of the produce for

» rent. Bub she found it increasingly difficult to care for her children
Jitmmmmmwmwuwuwmmum. Susan
d Charles went to live with their Uncle Charles Pray in Lovell, laine, and
mjanin Franklin was sent to his Uncle Benjamin in Ossipee. Poor as she was
memethmm. One stormy night there
8 & knock om the door. Grandmother opened it and there stood a stranger
BE e siuiter for Ahe mighh. e Sosk hin dn and nade & bed 208 M ou
,Mhronmmﬁn. In the morning he tried to express his thanks
, eould not, make himsolf understood for he was a foreigner.
'mmmrmm,mmm:ermmmmmmm
ming and weaving for her cen fardly and for her neighbors. She made her
annﬂdyodmdtpmh«rmml There are at least three pisces
',mmzmmm,mammmmummmunm
’mmsmm(mmmupommmmmwm

: or Stons). Her old-fashioned loom was kept in the loft of the corn
‘ﬁmmmmumn.
jrhmmmmmmmmutmornmmm
' and junt Annie were genorous in giving their services, and they were sidil-
She studied the almanac carefully and was well wersed in the phases
 the moon for each ane had to be his om weather prophet. She often pre=

d & change of weather when the moon "southed.” Ancther of her sayings
Mmmmmrﬂmdmmm'ummﬁdndm.

BB Mer cldest danghter, Annis, married Granduother relinquished the




%Ethohomnéd:mmdwbouidmtsau Numdwmm
orner, although she atill did a good deal of housework, She knit woollen
kings tummmﬂa:mtwmmmmum»unm
vwmmmmmmm.MmaIMam

Although as noted earlier Grandnother yielded the management of the house
zwwmnmm-sirmmmmmmw
there were times when she asserted herself and then her daughter bowed
bor will, In her later years it was hard for her to walk so that she did not
, E_:mmammmmmhpummwmmm
, , but ocoasionally Grandmother would insist and she would earry her
‘ MWWWMWM&MAW%MMW!
wmmwmonmmm,mmumuum. After
,,M@mmuwmmmwsuwmuﬁmrMMa
bonnet, on. She told them that she was going to see same of the neighbors and
%‘m“mwﬁmtmwm'uw. About‘th-gi.ddhcftht
mmwmmpwrmmmauaamwum. She put
%w,mmwm.mmuuumm, "You need not say
thtoymmmrorMAmh“mdthngdm

e many county women of her time she smoked a pipe and took snuff. She
mwubmmmwmmmmmwummgm@m
mumwmu
”MWmWﬂthnﬂm,ﬂmdmsmnahuapmdbr—
h'rm“noithwdnrkworbhck She retained her good looks
‘o mmtmmmam,m,m-mnhm
Quatmmmu

Mwm«n&m«:mm:wmmmm.mot




-y

Ammmwmwmmmwamma
» her youngest son, were sore trials. ¥hen her daughter Abigail married
to 0hio to 1ive both Granduother and Awnt Annte were loath %o have her
'nm-nyterthﬁrwrldmmwwthumnmﬁumm
munm,mmmn:u.mmmmmmumm,
ummmm&mmm.. She spent several winters with
nmmmmm,mm,mmmmmnm
| %mmmwmmam.mw.
hmmmmmmmMMamo:wam,
mwmummmmo@mn. I doubt if any of us can

a mutumuhursohmmmxmmmm. When I be=
wmmmm‘mmmmmt

e

one so young
 then over twenty) ahmndhnwuoluchmywhmdhmdwmdum

hm it,

hmjamtmubompupmﬁmtoMamhommmnu
f the old one, muurdidmtmtannhambutmwmwn
Pruled and work on the new house went en. In Jwne of that year (in her
| L year) Grandmother fell 111 and for two weeks lay partially un-
but not suffering. mmsmmmmmtmmw
hmmmmmmmmmm I have
muumm-w-mmm a revival of motions which she used
in spinning or weaving, xan.zwmmmnwmm,um
hmmummmmmmnnmuwwm.
hhmuumwmmm,mmmm
,uumwmmmemuwmmmw

‘took them in to get wamm, There were a winter and a sumer term with fre-
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MARY AN (AMHIE) HAM BUMKER

big
‘~',mmm¢m,m(nmm),mmumdmm
b to Wakefield, N. H., and attended sehool there for two years, iving with
. In 1818 she marrded Enoch Bunker of Farmington, son of James and
h Bunker. They went to school together as children. Then he was away
working with a circus and seldom sending any word of his where-

$ie ™ _ ) ;
. After a fow years he came home and worked on the Ham farm, and then married
They had no children bub took Anna Kimball, whose mother had died, to
ﬁ. Unecle Enoch was a good farmer and made the famm pay., Finally he and
I‘ﬁommmomrmm,mmmnmmuuwum

t.mmmnmmammwwm”m@wuu.

Annie was temperamental, as we say today, but he would laugh at her when

‘ _u&mmbnngwmw. He liked to tease Uncle Moses and

 toll him that he couldn't count. “Yes I cam," Uncle Moses would reply.
count, the bundles of hay," Uncle Enoch would say, and Uncle Moses would

' down from the hay mow saying, “Here's one, here's ancther, hare's

| re's another,” until all were accounted for.

' Aunt Annde died in Docembor, 1695, In 1003 she sold the old house and it

Il"'bawmmnmsmmumnm. She built

tory, hip-roof house and stable and made her home there. She left the

B ehow, Oeorge Y. Stons, who seld 4% 40 the late Elmer Thayer, r.

arged 4% and 1t is now the show place of the town.

‘the village grew rapidly in the '70s and '80s, and Aunt Annie sold off most
, for bullding lots. By this means she aoquired a comfortabls sum,

Ij'ﬁﬁllnihomnddmminm,mdmwmm“zm
ple of being wealthy, a reputation she greatly enjoyed.

| younger days she did the work that fell to farm women, milking, butter—

i
T
b



was & noted cook. One of her fine qualities was her loyalty to :
unmmimﬁm“unmermmwm
nmm?m«ﬂdmmunumm i

er and erect with a decisive manner, her nieces and nephew often
h them but, as one of her sisters-in-law
) might quarrel betwsen themselves bub
1y they presentod an unbroken front to




ABNER HAM

M&m,theldoﬂaon,mbominl&l?. He was named for his
mu,mmumwmwm.bmumm,wm
Mmﬂ As a boy he was serious and particular to do things right. It
; wwmmmmmmmrmmtummm
,Mﬁ'mwmm'-. He took him to the family home and there hs
2 witil his death, *
Mﬁmmmtwm&mﬁmbﬂhmmtimtwmm“m
mmo,prabablyhcmoh.mauwwhihdpmn.
ummmwmammmmzrmmmmmm
”'hmmmmu During his college course he stayed out a year to

luu\;

mwmmmm»wu,ummmmmmm He finished
fadlon) course at New Yosk University in New York Gity in 1847,
tmmmmm.mrmm,mmwu
“ hMﬂd@,M.,ﬂﬁubeﬁmutnm. I remember him
as we lived npar by, and I often went to the store. He must have liked
rw,utnrwlaumhhmmmﬁmtﬁthwm
Aty, He taught his niece Louise to walk.

- After the Civil War he, like many others, thought the South offered great
' uusmmmto&uthcueumwmu cotton. Unfortunately he
d malignant fever and died there in 1866. I remember our driving wp te
mxmachimmthinkﬁmthavobmumummmcf
Mh‘dbmnmiwd, for the seene is elear in my memory. Orandmother
M mt Annde were standing in the big barn door and when Uncle Ben gob out of
,\WWMMmlfinmmmvlpt.

Abner married Ellen Pollard of Grest Falls, M. He, in one ehild,
| Abner, lived to grow wp, the others dying in infancy. Aunt Ellen lived
m,amhlymmﬁwmt.hnnbmmminmth.

R



i mm‘mmothcrm,u}amorhhmmva,for
‘m-m,hmmmwhg lie was brought wp in the expec-
lon of being his aunt's heir. He graduated from Harvard in 1873 (?) but
’m‘mmmmmum niu, however, through
,m,m,_c.mhummummm.mwmm. It is one
..mmtmmmvnmmmnmm

A

te deal, although she would not admit it, and one day startled everyone
e table by breaking in to the Gonversation with the question o hex right-
Sigabor as Lo what he thought of Napoleon's treatment of Jesephine. The
. 18 not recorded. Another time she was peeved with her niece Louise and
reafter always spoke of her as lirs. 0. Jones,

= .4 \
. ¥
LG, o

il
X

L
Bl io !
gay




-1-

SUDAN HAM

- Busan and Charles went to Gorham, N. H., and from there to Lovell,

8, to stay with their uncle, Charles Pray. He got them into the Wood

¥ of that town, well-to-do country people, the family consisting of

o7, Bother and three bachelor sons. They wanted & young boy and girl

'4,wu-¢m. Josiah Viood, one of the sons, sent them to

”M-WMMWmmuhuﬂMmu,
_g_‘.‘MNtthmdwmmhMMmm

8he was married. She and her husband had no ehildren but they adopted

e glrl, lary ibbie.

usually accomplished by horse and buggy or horse and sleigh., A mem-
‘mum--mmwmmmmmmnm
8r by horse and slelgh frum Famsington, 7The ride to Lovell was delightful
gh cols  but while they were thore the snow melted and the homeward trip

¢ patohas of snow was never forgotten.
I’MMmIBSSMWmWMOtm'mmmMM
"M'MM~ She had just had the parlor and sitting room made into

om and had bought new fwrniture in Boston. The first time the room was
for hor funeral.

| A lstter from Auwt Susan, which 1s appended, shows her affecticn for hes



mmtomwrﬁmfmmmsw (Ham) Wood

; lovell, Me., Dec. 17, 1842

: Im'dyouru:ykindhttaratndawﬁmmdm
hhufrumnﬂm'aolmgnhneo I could not imagine

Iﬁnnotmmyoummanhuznwttobomm-

Mthtiumlmaim:hmmormm

!«mnuhawthoprocpoct of passing mn'intorphuanuy

i 't.(mtbosolton)andmunmulydolhmitunpm Bo.
ad

hnmtahiendmcnthmnmthnrthatnjoimmm

,- y mwmhnpmmxdo. Poﬂup-mnuwﬂnt

%ullitue selfish because your prospects are now flattering, I

mummuwwm»xmzm but still
@ sister's affection for » brother is deep and unbounding let his career
wnx‘obomtituy, ospecially when she sees him walking in
hmorhmramvxnm.
rwmuhmmzmpuommmumuwmm,
gﬁnwyonaoxﬂdnotgntuacbooltorhninn. He loft here a

mtodaytornmngtontotuehmboolthom. I de not know

ﬂtdittrictith. Hahumorlzdolhraamth I am not sure

weh; tho teachers at Corway told him that if he would continue go=



S%om |

wol closes, Inoeivedahtur!rnhﬂm;fnmm;

'_:ywmtmw-mbotmmumhuamr.

3 _:,M‘Mth to try the effect of the salt water, thinks
‘.‘g%ﬂ.ﬁtvhbu. Abby has had a chance to take a school this
it Qt&manub.botmtormrsugowmzmu
ac h, Mary wrote that Benja is keeping school in Dover and report
Q “mmm:toaynwhdybyﬂnmernmn
Qushnmmw:dofit, or to say the least I hope it is
_qn;um:omgmtothink:orurmng. I much rather
‘n@summwmurmmgeuwwmmmxwww

_g_qn].ththomc.

i
Y
T
'i
A

: wgonmuhunymattommnn. (Boston?) this winter,
must say no, I hardly think I should dare venture so far from home

*mm\mm. Bu@:hqatemmb-roumum

raduate andmmtmtdiuwthu. I think of going to Farming-
&aﬂdﬁhtﬁommoatthruorfmm,ushitmn

1bl for me to see you there.

I do not kmow as I have anything to write that would be interest-
tgyou. Things go on much as they did last summer. Charles Pray's

o 4 mnmwmmmwcm You say you have often

‘1,,;"‘  of the pleasant rides you had with Jodah. I hope you have not

“ mmmmuwummﬁa,mtmcplmrim
Ithmhhmdlnmm;htumufmyoum.
mnpaperummtwnhbutnaum:muwtm
very of'ten.
| ixcuse all mistakes as this is written in a hurry.

Your affectionate sister

Susan



.‘_'l; Stone) The letter I hav: was copled by Father from the
jz'.ummwpmu this note by Mother. 4
Your father has copied the letter already
o ?“‘ mmmu:tmttommummm.

moumnnbomhmmmm
‘mamm,mmu«m«rmmm

'\ﬂomqmnuytcmandywhta!urmgdmwmmma
i' aﬁ«.’m could. This morning brought the baby's pictures. Please tell
. the young man it is the finest valentine we ever received. Isn't he
i a darling? He is so sweet I long to take him in my arms. We are all
delighted with the pictures. good,  Tell
Martha her picture is as good as it can be and we are all glad to have
her with the baby. wm-muniﬂanofit.

nwlovmmm

)

P. 8, by George W. Stone. The B~ I questioned as "Boston" must be
"Brunswick" where Bowdoin college is.
lartha was our colored maid and nurse and the baby was Bradford.



Cathev ve k:szbu. vy Jacew Fam

Katharive #am ST,;(Q_



- Benjamin Franklin, the second son, was born July 3, 1623, As a baby

e
had rickets and Grandmother censulted a doctor who advised the following

"g A tub otntar'mdrmtmthonnnt night and allowed to

i
outdoors. In the morning the baby was taken from his warm bed and

‘.;ﬁthooMuur. Of course he shrieked but after being wrapped
éﬁi‘tmdputtobodamnhnwouldzotoslup The treatment was
_cg y if heroie, for as a young man he was quite an athlets.

,SMMdetmoMbmntmnuanMe,Mm

e
,hMpoo andwrkodtorhiabonrdandolm He never forgot the

of hoeing potatoes on Ossipee Mountain, He lived at home very little
gmrormmmthirtmhumtwﬂauek,mh,umappmum
aqmmwlmwuﬂmiwammmtotmm-
bmurormyuamandbymﬂmmrﬁmhoumdmughto
time. The minister in Natick, Rev. Elias Nason, was interested in the
g nen of the ‘town and loaned them books. Benjamin always spoke gratefully
B and satid he cwed his dove of Shakespsare to Ma. Another yowg
BB Pacnington sme to Metiok st Shat Ane, Nenry Wilsan, who was vice-
18 m“ } with Grant. A debating club was formed by a growp ot the young men,

mthuagoodtraining
llnjuinr. must have been a good scholar for when he was in the district

e

i

mmomratforodapnutompupumwmwtmm-y

FI7's gramar to heart. He did so and received a oopy of the hated book

In 1845 he married Catherine Kingsbury Bacon of Hatick, daughter of John
Imy(suin) Bacon. She was a most attractive young woman, of lovely char-
er, alvays a holpmate. They had one child who died in infancy. Soon affter
-; marriage they went to Millbury, Mass., to live where Benjamin and Charles,
,i;manrbm&r, established a store. This was not a success and Benjamin
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is wife returned to the Bacon home in Natick. He taught school and
died law in the office of

i

. After being admitted to the Bar he practiced in Natick in partnership
Ia" Q.P.Mns. During this period he was able to build a comfortable
) on Walnut Hill in Natick. In the late '50s he was elected Clerk of
rﬂmmw,mdﬁmmmbutormmwm

]

* il inereasing deafness compelled him to resign. At that time he went to

Bast Cambridge to 1ive o bo near the Court Houss; while it is doubtful if
,mmwmmmmmmamqmumqnmﬂ;mm
M.mtmdmmmforalﬂution. After the close of the Civil
far he and lir. Dewing acquired a sugar plantation in Loulsiana and tried
gar making but it was not successful. In his later years he dealt in
"mmanﬂlm. e died in May, 1693.

. For nany years Benjamin was the mainstay of the other members of the

r for help in time of trouble, either by advice of finaneial help, He
had an alert mind and & good memory. Ho read widely and had he habit of

' aloud to the family anything that interested him. As his foster
@114 T have reason o be very grateful to him for guiding my reading, My
,mnmmmmmzmamrormmmy'-mwry
“Wmﬂmtinumtnmlyunuchutho"Prmly'hooko,but.md.r
his watchful eye I read Macaulay. He liked to select passages from Webster's
dens for me to speak in school on Friday afternoons. Among other books he
aloud were Irving's Iife of Washington, his Knickerbocker History of New
and Kane's Arctic kxplorations.
mnclmﬂodhislutcrmumdthsnunﬂuamofﬁum
g that make this affliction bearable now. Although he did not always re-
al 1t,hhwu'omhicguidin¢nar,nluvsloyalmdpaumt.

| o travelled a good deal, making a sumer trip fo Lebrador in 1864, It
is interesting to notethat the conditions of life for the fishermen had not
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d when Dr. Grenfell began his work there so long afterwards. He

] t to California in 1866 going to the isthmus of Panama by water, erossing
46 by rail and embarking on the west side for Sen Francisco. This trip was
artly on business and partly to search for some trase of his brother Charlss,
had not been heard from for years, but no trace was found, His return
trip was made overland by stage to the point where the transcontinental raile
was uet.

The Natick Cobbler
One of the Liberty ships under construction at South
Portland is to be named for the Vice-President of the United
States whom New Hampshire and Maséa.chusetts both may claim,
the one as a native, the other as an adopted son. Henry
1son's little shoe shop stands in Natick as a memorial to the
cobbler who came afoot from New Hampshire with hardly  a penny
his pocket but with rare a.éSéts of character. His industry
:ﬁs phenomenal, his ambition‘udbounded and his courage equally
remarkable.

From the Boston Herald - 1942



Charles fawn
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CHARLES HAHM

;j‘eMm, the youngest sen, and his sister Swan went to Lovell, Maine,
live with their uncle, Charles Pray. lHe completed his education in the
my at North Conway. Susan urged him to go o college but he did not do
. He taught district school in Farmington for some time for $10 or 12 a
 Sometime in the late '40s he and Benjamin went to Millbury, Mass., and
;dll store but the venture was not successful and he decided to
’ mkmmia. He was urged %o go home and see his mother
sters before leaving but he refused to for he sald he could not withstand
's pleading and Annie's and Abbie's tears. Vhen she found that he
ot be persuaded to do this, his sister-in-law with the fine Christian
phy she always had tried to make his last days with them as pleasant as
He salled around the Horn and was nine months in reaching San Francisco.
yral. Letters wore roceived from him and in each he eomplained of not hearing
hame, In the last one +he said he was golng to some mines worked by Hexi-
“'muamubmamm After letters from him stop-
ning his sister Abigall got from the Farmington post office a list of all
B et e fin Cadifersla and wrote S0 sadk DUk mevdr sessived Teplise.
rts to trace him failed and he was one of the many gold seekers whose
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ABICGAIL HAM

Abigaﬂﬂm,thcyowgeltorthcrmily,mbomthrumtha after
hep father's death, March 1, 1026,

Mahnmoldmou@xtogotoschmltmwhnrohudmnneithor
mmmmaamaoraz-mlwmm»mmumm
- mile-long walk alone. Shnmmthurmtherh&dhardmkwukouﬁImot
and that she was worried about getting the money to pay tazes. The little daush-
. _jiter asked her what taxes were and after her mother explained little Abigail
 sald, q'llut«&;ﬁwhmImthotuunominaI'lldrinthnamand
muumstotubigputuaandeon‘tknwmhauw.“

mrahemthronshwastrictmlnMwnttomwwat
Mmfwamammumhtsnhormnvetm. She was a great
help at home, being a willing worker, and her sister Annle discouraged any
attupttogow;muach.

Ammmwokmmmmmmwﬂmmwm.
mtmrdlroudtmmurtoutmw“sbunt.hntookucboudera
_ young civil engineer, Stephen ¥. Stone, not thinking that he would carry off
her sister.

The young people becane well acquainted and the friendship ripened into
narriage. When the railrosd was finished & party of tomspeople went to Alten
audthonmrthol&hundthilmthermtﬁmthathﬂwr%ookﬁothlrout.

The young engineer now went out to ohio (then the far west) and continued
his railroad work. Thommntmmmycmmdthn!umbwku
be married. m&temutbubhemdomﬂinwﬁngbackandholwppod
ummtoordarawddingauit. Mmmmmhotomdm
tnurnnmublodmdlmofthuooﬂdnitmlongerlotmnddinebook
place the next day, Sunday, June 4, 1854, but his new suit was not resdy.

mmmjmy,mmmmummm'-mm
chaise, they visited the groom's brothers, Thomas and Charles, in Maine. When
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the golden wedding was celebrated in 1904 one of the nieces, lMary Stone
.Ihm-nl,mwmuﬂm&mmtminpnm@tmuuntu«m
pr,mantmwl.

' mwmpnwutwumo,bﬂuhomnotom

where he would be located his bride did not go with him. As soon as he was
‘wstablishod he sent for her with explicit instructions as to where they would
meb, She travelled west with lioses Bacon and wife and Kr. and ¥rs. Jennings

Who had just been married and were going to Chicago. There is a story in the
lason fanily that Klisaboth (Bacon) Jennings was very loath to lesve heme and
wpt coplously, even after reaching the railroad station. Finally her clder
brother said to her, "As you feel so badly about going you need not do so, but
stay here." Whereupon she stopped crying and said indignantly, "0f course I'm
going. "

' The first day's jowney was to Albany where the night was passed. The

b day they reached Cleveland where Mother left her friends and went to Colum-
bus, expecting to meet her husband. He had again been delayed and was not at the
frain or at the hotel, nor was there any word from him, She told the hotel eclerk
fhat she must got to Chillicothe for she was sure her husband was sick. The clerk
,Mh«rtogobypahtbutamiptammtorhsr. About an hour after
she loft Father arrived, learned what had happened and hired a horse and driver.
By driving all night, changing horses as he went, he arrived in Chillieothe in

to meet her as she stepped off the boat. He used to tell his ehildren that
Mmtmtmmirmﬁnrtﬁndtommytrmhh.

| The married life of Stephen and Abigail was a happy one. They had six chil-
two of whom died in infancy, Mary and Frank. The other children were -

n Food Stone, born October 2, 1855; Louise Frances, Born Octoberl5, 1859;

® Ham, born liovember 12, 1860 and George Winchester, born December 3, 1865.
Host of their married life was spent in southern Ohio, with a brief interlude
¥hen they came back to Massachusetts, and another when they lived in Crawfordsville,



Mm Grandmother and Aunt Annie thought it was not safe or right for
.Naﬂtogocofumfmhmtoliwmdthhmmbmofmir
‘Mtora. So the return to Massachusetts was made aboub 1856, when Father went
mmumbmummmumm,mwmm, of Newton. This
_Mmmamlmmrwmmm-ntmrmzymmmn.n-
hrmd to Ohio to re-establish himself. Nother had her fourth child, Katharine,
in November, 1860, » soon after hor husband left and, as winter was coming on, her
 Mrother Benjamin, tmndngmcanbxidgc,twkthoMcfmnytOMahm
mnmymum,wzhmrhndamhm:rorﬁm Whon it was

tne to start for Ohlo, her brother and his wife, whose only child died in in-
tmy,mmnmawtmmmummwmmr. Mother found it
'W:u to withstand her brother's pleas and ﬁ.mlly connnM, so that little
mmmrmmmuurm- and aunt,

| mnmrauymm-mmmmiommwuemmmmwm
mmmuwm,wnntpemm“ummmmnm-thm-
 tory, and here little Frank and George were born. The children have always looked
back on the 1ife and the friends there with deep affection.

I mwmmmrmmkmtmmmirﬁntﬁuttoOhio,a
mtmntinﬁwirvnwa. They went to Marietta snd as the family was about

- to move to Crawfordsville, Indiana, went with them. PFather was to build a reil-
thmmpmma«kvinebmumtommmutor'a:.nnnnmn-
| ary funds for this project and at the end of three years it was abandoned. Then
Father became road-master of the road he had formerly worked on, the old Marietta
"mcmemum,mmwmmmmrmenmnmoMo
23 the Baltimore and Ohio Southwestorn. He had chargs of the roadbed and all the
' bridges on the 260 mile streteh and held it wntil his retivement in 1696 or 97.
When the family retwrned to Ohio in 1873, the home was established in the

' suburb of Nadisonville, at that time a chaming little country village. Here a
houumbuiituh'colubhn‘mm,monuwm.tvm,m-mrof
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umofmwmmumymwmmmhmuhuthr
lived, &mum_m,wm,w_mmm-wm
this house, M{Mtemthntnmmgaaonﬂdummn
without jarring 1t, g , . d

uuohoi the time m;mh_m:mx,éqou_a,aoo{m_.gmm.wnn
very loyel to him so he had no labor troubles to. cantend with. The nen, most of
mumzn‘mw,mmszormwummuwu
orumpraamwmmmmmm 4

Atmummwwntmummmmmtmumumluu
lhouldlndimutizauanchmdthatmormmwahgefvmhymm
shack, ﬁMtWanhﬂwrmtqndﬁminmmhm
thmuahth-nilroudmnﬁhhhmdmm@z,inmm'omw
ksg.mfo!md. ,Mrmmmwrmwmnu,m.mmm

'hn,toumudths,hgg, nwmwmmmwmmm;nm.
mm&tmmmmuwfmhrmmmmtomuttnhzow
side which he did, Wiﬂxamnuﬁmomblw-thohowmwmmm
whiskey ran out on the ground. T}uethﬁrmlookadanbutdidmtinumn
and there was no further trouble.

!oaraarurmntirmnththertookatripmtmﬂuhcmupno
thrmclumeommnmormrm:omnnmm'mumm
mtomthinntﬁatuinu?&muldnkntonchinm. When he stepped
otrthetmnntmuicmmw:uhhfmmmbntamam
mmromruwr&d:wmmnmmwwmtm.

Pathor wus very quiet butvithrulfomtfchlmtarmdmmoomhn
Mnamuruhrornoﬂmwhommtmmmhid:lm, full of
energy and ambition, &nmmuinhoruthnhothartﬂ%,ﬂdmt
mpmmmmmm\mmm:rmmmm She was devoted to
hortuil;lndnbiﬁoutorhnrohudmthatumhnnwmummd
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take their places in the world. She was a good manager, what old-fash-
ioned pecple called prudent, 8 good helpmate for her husband.

There is one more anscdote of Father which is worth recording. When
muumquuyowmm‘mmpmnmmmmumtm.
nmgavemm.mu«um.mmummmmmm
Tan upstairs to her room, threw horself on the bed and cried. Soon Father
mmutdmmwm,nmubdidle, "louise, I have al-
ways had a viclent temper and #s a young man I realized that if I did not
conquer 1it, 1twm;murmw1w-Mmqwmmmm
it." o

The grandehildren, both Hills' and Jones', had the good fortuns to

geauine peaple tra_mthnymmmmqud.
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(1) ¥illiam Ham came from Bngland; was granted land in Portamouth in
1646, now called Freeman's Point; went from Exeter to
Portsmouth in 1646,

Wife's mother was Mary Haplet of London.

(2) Had son Matthow; married.
tiad sons John (3) and Thomas (3)

(3) John settled in Wewington and married Judith Pitman.

(4) Had son Joln (4), Jr., and others. MHe was our great-
(5) Thomas, grandfather of John Twombly. ) Bettis sus
(5) Joseph, his descendants went to Vakefield. | Geamdtath

Col. Joseph marched to Portsmouth with a company of
soldiers in March, 10 & 2.
(5) Abner
(5) Benjmmin, our grandfather; married Abigail Pray of Lebanon, Maine. [ior. 177
(5) Moses (non-compos.)

(5) Mary | )
(5) Sarah (mm) "' S, ag lumj | 4 .
ey

(7) Katharine

William Ham's will in Exctor
John Ham's will in Exetey
Susceeding generations in Strafford County, Dover.
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Abigail Pray marrisd Benjamin Ham,of Parmington, N, H.
She was the daughter of
Brothers and Sisters were
Abraham (eldest)
Joha, father of Mrs. Nutter
Benjanin, of Ossipee
Nathandel, father of kre. Wober
Edmund (youngest)

Charles
Joshua, father of Willias Pray, of Matick
Ann

Hary, married Peavey

Susan, married Shores

mnﬁnrofthufummtmbbywommmmam‘. Pray,
nndamm-dcmmnn,a m,erhmam,n.a.
cmt-mmmmmwmummmm



27&
The 01d Ham Farmhouse, Farmington, N.G.




Recollections of the 0ld Eome at Farmington, N. H.

I remember the’old place at Farmington very distinctly
and just how it looked when I was a childes The one story house,
pﬁintedAwhitc, faced the south and had the end toward the street.

It was built I think, in 1829 when mother was three years old.

Her father had intended building a new house but died without doing
80, and Grandmother built ite MNother can remember when it was built.
I have heard mother tell of the living room in which was the big

: fireplace, where the cooking was done, around which the family gathered
in the evanings At one time the baking waes donme in the brick oven,
which was heated once a week, and filled with brown bread, beans,
plies &ce They always had enough to eat and clothes to keep them
warm, though not very fine ones. Grandmother being left a widow
with six littie children, had rather a hard time. She had to rent
out the farm or hire it worked. They all worked hard, but mother
seems to have pleasant memories of her childhood. Being the
youngest; born after her father died, she probably did not feel
their poverty and the hardships 80 keenly as the older ones.
Grandmother had a loom and wove much of their clothing and house=
‘hold stuff, but I do not know where the loom was kept. Mother used
to make play houses over in the pasture, and keep house with rag
dolls and dishes made out of acoruss They walked a mile to

school through the deepest snows in winter, and the boys in the

~ gchool had to take turns acting as janitor going early enough to
make the fire so that the room would be warm when the teacher
arrived. When one of mother's brothers, Uncle Doctor or Uncle

Charlee, wae jenitor he took great pride in doing his work well
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getting up very early in the cold winter mornings, so as to have
& good fire and the school house nicely swept bDefore school time.
Hother was rather a delicate child and was troubled with
a coughe As consumption was the scourge of New England, people
thought that she was going into a®"decline® and she can remember
tke neighbors coming in and talking to Grandmother about her; say-
ing that they did not think she would live to grow upe PFinally
& dooctor wae consulted and he decided that the cou,h came from her
stomach, and a course of treatment cured it entirely. Mother is
now 83 years old.
In later years the nouse wag changed somewhat a part
of the living room was partitioned off and two small bedrooms made
on the end next the streets A dining room was added on the north
side and an entrance made on the west bido. towards the street,
so that I élwaya considered that the front of the house rather than
the south sides« The south door opened into a small entry, from
whiech the stairs went up into two unfinished rooms under the roof,
one larger than the other. These were always used as sleeping rooms
and I have slept up there many nights, and thought it a very
delightful place.s Outside the south door was a broad flat door
stone, and at one side grew a lilac bushe This door step was one
of my favorite spots where I loved to play. In the parlor, which
was formerly the 1171ng rcos, sicod a huge stove, called a "copenhagen®.
In this room was also the big sofa covered with haircloth, and the
cérd tables The big clock usually stood in the dinirg room, while
the old segretary was in the kitchen. In Aunt Annie's bedroom was

an old fashioned chest-of drawerse. Just below the hill on the souuth
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pide of the houno,/was the al. welle I remember the big barn and
the carriage house, the barn yard and lane through which the cows
were driven to the pasturej the garden and the woodpile behind the
-hoﬁsa. The brook that flowed through the meadow was a great attrace
tion, in it we fished with bent pins, and sailed boats. On the hill
beyond was the family burying grouad., fenced in, where we gathered
checker berries and wintergreen. A trip to the big pasture after
the cows when they strayed away, or to pick wild strawberries, was
quite an event, and to cross the big brook on stepping stones was
a feat not to be lightly undertaken.

Uncle Moses, my grandfather's brother, lived at the
old farm and I can remember him well. He was a good natured, harme
less old man, not very bright as £0'intallect5 and I think he must
‘have spent most of his time in the woods preparing the family fuel,
as I remember him coming home in the evening with hies axe on his
shoulders I don't know when he died, and there is no stone to his
memory in the lot in the Farmington cemetery to which the bodies
were removed from the family burying ground. I must not forget to
mention old Kate, the faithful horse, whose loss was deplored when
she was solde The heavy work on the farm was doné with oxen; and
I used to like to watch them hauling stone on a "sled", obeying
the voice of their driver. I think their names were Buck and Bright.
In haying time my delight was to ride to the barn on the load of
hays I also helped to carry jugs of water sweetened with molasses
andflnavored with ginger, for the men to drink while hayinge When
the cows were driven home at night I loved to go to the barn and

watch the process of milking, sometimes being allowed to take a
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hand in it myself. The big barn was a delightful place in whieh

to play, but we spent most of our time out of doorse Aunt Annie

was & good cook and her doughnuts, rye pan cakes and cold Indian
upudding. which she gave us for luncheons, tasted very goode I can
remember that she made cheese once, but that was not much done in

ny time. The cheese press was in tae carriage houses Grandmother
and Aunt Annie taught me to knit wnd would give me a "stins" as

they called it, which seemed rather hard to me when I wanted to

play. I had to knit & certain number of rounds in the leg of a
'ltocking. Grandmother was a great knitter and used to knit our

- stockings for us when we were childrens I remember her with great
affection and I have always considered her a remerkable woman «
According to the custom of the times she retired from active life
when the oldest daughter (Aunt Annie) wés married, and gave the house=
keeping over to her. Attgrwarda Grandmother sat in the chimney
corner and knit, or helped with the lighter part of the worke She
liked to be employed, and would wash dishes as long as she was ables
Her eyesight was very poor in later years, but she loved to read

her Bible and would sit and sing hymns in a trembling old voicee« For
some years she drew a pension, as my Grandfather had served in the
war of 1812. She always retained her membership in the Baptist
¢hurch of Farmingtons She went to the farm when she was married in .
1817 and it was her liome for 66 years. She was a widow for 58 yéars,
and died in the old house at the ripe old age of 93. She had many
sorrows, chief of which béing the death of her youngest son, Charles,
who went to California in the early '50s and never returned. Nothing
wag ever known of the manner of his death and it must have been a
life long grief to Grandmother.

August, 1909 Susan W. Hills.



Recollections of the 0ld Home at Farmington, N. H.

Among my early recollections of Farmington is that of
the big red gate on which I loved to climb and watch the occasional
passer by. Another thing I well remember is the wild cherry
tree at the corner of the porch. I loved to eat the sour, un-
palatable fruit, stone and all and the only reason I can see
why I did not have appendicitis is that this disease was not
known then to the medical world.

The broad stone step at the south door was a favorite
haunt of mine and I think I must have sat there by the hour, so
plainly do I remember the view of the meadow, the village and the
hills beyond. I was a dreamy child and I think I spent many hours
when the other children were playing, in musing and imagining im-
possible things. One of my early dreams was that Uncle Charles
- Would come home from California with riches untold and we would all
live happy ever after. another dream was that I would one
day be a circus rider, I had seen in g circus parade a little
light haired girl on g white pony, dressed in a light blue riding
habit trimmed with silver stars and to be in this girl's place
was my day dream. But this is hot of Farmington.

The woodpile back of the‘house was my play house, here I
gathered chips and stones and made my rooms and furniture. The
barn was full of wonderful possibilities. To climb to the top of
the hay mow filled wme with delight and terror for I was so little

that I had to be helped up and then came the fear that I should
never get down unless I Jumped. Once Charley Ham told me if I

' would put a horse hair in a bottle of water it would turn into a

snake. Of course I believed him and watched the bottle for days




only to be disappointede.

I remember when our baby brother Frank was buried, that
we walked from the house over the cart path to the little family
grave yard, I think I acted badly on the way for father took me
by the hand and I walked with him and mother. I know he looked
very sade

Behind the burying ground was the pine woods where we
ient to gather checkerberries. I never ventured far into the wood
for it ran down into a hollow and looked so dark and deep that
I imagined wiid animale and even giants might live in its gloom
and shade.

Behind the barn was the barn yard and a lane led down to
the pasture. When the cows were driven into the barn vard I used
to take a certain flowered cup and watch through the bars of the
fence till Aunt Annie had finished milkinge. When she came out
she would fill my cup with the warm milk and I would sit down on
the ground and drink it. The horsé was Old Kate and she had a
colt named Lady Waéhington. The colt was sold when I was a very
little girl. Aunt Annie once drove to mill and took George and me.
We went very early in the morning and while on the:road I looked
at George and he was bare headed, his hat had blown off, but he
was s0 happy that he didn't care and had not spoken of it. We
had to go back a long distance to find it.

The brook was our gfeat delight. Charley took me fishing
once and I promised Aunt Annie a fish dinner, but alas, I talked
80 much that Charley went off and fished alone for he said that
I would scare-the life out of any fish. After he left I began

to get lonely and then frightened. My hook was a bent pin and
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my line a string; after a while I swung my line around so that
my hook caught in the mouth of a big bull frog. When I saw that
frog swinging on my line and kicking with all his might I almost
died of fright but luckily he kicked loose and splashed into the
water and I ran home as fast as my short legs would carry me.
When I was a very little girl Uncle Enoch used to give me his hat
to hang up when he came in from thé field. When I took it I would
often find a grass hopper in it and I guess I screamed lustily
for grass hoppers were one of the terrors of my young life. At
the table I sat beside Uncle Enoch. My potato had to be mashed
and smoothed until it was without uneveness or I thought I could
not eat it. Uncle Enoch used to say that he was going to make a
machine to prepare my potato. One day when we had cod fish with
cream gravy and my plate had been fixed to my satisfaction, some-
thing drew my attention away. When I was ready to eat again my
plate was empty. Uncle Enoch had slipped the food on to his plate.
He did this not once but many times, Aunt Annie always protesting
and he with his love of a joke, doing it again when occasion offered.

I can just remember when sheep were kept on the farm and
one ram was very cross. One day when the sheep were driven into
the barnyard we all climbed up on the fence to watch Charley stir
the animgls up with a stick. It was exciting as a Spanish bull
fight to us. Aunt Annie had a flock of Ducks. A hogshead was
gsunk in the yard and filled with water for them. We were told
that we could take the ducks to the brook after the grass in the
meadow had been cut. Charley suggested that we drive them down
to show them where the brook was. When the ducks came in sight

of running water they made their way to it as fast as their short
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legs could carry them and never again did they return to their home
by the barn. In dismay at what we had done we spent the morning
tramping up and down the banks of the brook, treading down the long
grass, trying to drive the ducks back to the barn, but with no
successe I do not think Aunt Annie said much about it tho' it

was to save the grass she had forbidden our doing this. Once when
Charley took me over to the big brook be showéd me how I could get
across by jumping from one stone to another. He did it very easily
but when I tried I jumped in and in utter contempt of a girl he
pulled me out, shook me well and sat me up on a rock to dry, going
off and leaving me. One day some men came to the house and Aunt
Annie went out to the barn with them. They talked a long time and
- then we knew Old Kate was sold. That night a man came and took

her away. Annaz did not eat any supper but stayed out in the stall
with her head against 0ld Kate's neck and cried.

The meadow was most beautiful to me and I remember how
the green, velvety grass contrasted with the gray stone wall and
the dark pines in the background. In the early summer we gathered
wild strawberries here. When the grass was long and the wind blew
it I imagined it a green sea with ever moving waves. In haying
time to pitch hay, to carry some kind of a drink to the men, to
ride in the hay wagon, was bliss beyond compare. Once Aunt Annie
gave me a forked stick to pitech hay with and I was humiliated
deeply for all the others had pitchforks. It was in vain she told
me that I would be likely to put out my eyes with a fork, but when
one of the men told me I could work with him I was satisfied with
my home made implemente

The year-of the duck epidode one of the men brought
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~ home a beautiful duck bleeding from a cut in the side. It had made
its nest in the long grass.and the mower, not seeing it had cut
into the nest, The poor thing was almost dead and the sight made
me sick. I think my conscience troubled me too for my part in drive-
ing them to the brook. |

At church we used to stand during the singing, turning
about to face the singers at the back of the church. A girl whom
I knew, I think she was a Hayes, used to sit in the choir with her
sister and I envied her above all people for during the sermon

she could walk about and not be seen.

Louise Frances (Stone) Jones

1909



Joseph Ham Farm

SR

as far as Waldron

Village Business District
Sold before Benjamin Ham's
death

Eastman Place



-38-

TRANSCRIPT OF COURT RECORDS

~ Sarah Ham's estate administered lay 19, 1839.
Mary Ham's estate administersd May 19, 1839.
United property valued at $304.82.
Every article of household furniture valued, rusning from
elght cents to $12.50. TFoather bods woré the most valusble.
Inventory made June, 1038,

Thomas Ham's estate administered December 1, 1852,

1is 1nformation copled from records in the Probate Gourt
at Dover, ¥. H., by Eatharine H. Stons.




December 7, 1825 - Abigail Ham appointed administratrix of estate of
Benjamin Ham. Bond, $3,000. Sureties, Thomas Ham
and Joshua Pray.

Joseph Ham died in 1825 in November.

February 3, 1031 - Joehmpmofmgqgappoinm Wothwm,
Abner, Susan, Benjamin F., Charles and Abigail Ham,
ehildren of Benjamin Ham, Jr., late of Parmington.
%mmp:\laﬁdinhhfm. |
Sureties, John Wingate, Esq., and Thomas Ham, yeoman,

May 14, 1871 = Joshua Pray authorized to sell real estate to the
amount of {411 for the support of his wards,

July 16, 1838 - mmmmmumnuuumnhn.

land forming Benjamin Ham estate bounded on
Northwest by land of Moses Ham
Northeast by range road :
Southeast by land of 5. Dame, Nathaniel Eastman and others
Southwest by the Cochero River
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GUARDIAN'S ACCOUNT

Joshua Pray filed his guardian's account May 16, 1840.
From February 14, 1831, to Aprdl 18, 1838, his expense
aceount was $64.06. He credits the heirs with §160.53
and charges §1 for services and oxpenses.

1831 - February 14
larch 14
May 5
Hay 14
May 24
Hovember 14

Novenmber 15
Novamber 16

1832 ~ ¥arch 17
April 21

1833 - February 28

1836 - March 31

4pril 10
dprdl 26

May 2
1838 - May 14

July 14

July 24

September 15

September 30

Ono day

Journey to Dover & horse
Une day, selling property

One day, Probate Court
11/2 days

One day at Farmington
with Road Commit

One day at Farmington
with Road Committoe

One at Farmington
uufg.a“m,

One day

One day, settle acctas,
1/2 day, settle acots.
One day, settling with
ne for
ANy

Two days, settlement
with :

Two m’ ‘Mﬂ‘ ref,
One day, Journey to Dover

Cash paid out

One day, journey to Dover

Une day, Probate Court
Rechestoer

One day, settling accts.

#1.00

2.50
1,00
2,00
1.50

1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00 and settle acets.
.00

«50

1.00
2.00

2,00
2.00
2.00

o062
2,50

1.00
50
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1838 (Cont'd)=December 26  One day, journey

$o Glimantonh = = V¢ ‘3%

1839 - January 23 Pour days to Dover 4,00
| February 2~ Hourdaw, freming ' 3.34

February 5  1/2 day, " .50

February 5  One day to Dover . 2,00
February 15  Fowr days, framing 3.4
s B W B nd Th
" Pebruary 23 One day to Rochester

1.50
ddtto - S a® -
1838 - . April Paid J. Pearl -~ cow  17.00
. §64.06
1845 - April 1 Final aect. of Joshua Pray
Total amount §911.74
Accepted by
hbligall Ham
~ Mary A. Bunker
Eknoch Bunker




VIILL OF JOHN Hax
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be given wnto God. cnnuummmuuyorqw,mmu
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manner and formg- rAs ,
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I have deeded to him. _ R
M—Iﬁﬂnndbuqmthtoaymdmphﬂ#a,wmsuhnd
orrorthommmt'mo:mrmxmnw on. Beginning at the
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hndamodby'moa Ham: to him, hiaMuMmiw!mr,mdlm-
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Peather bed and bedding there-with, provided, nevertheless, that if he,
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4th - xwmbmwwwmmmmmm,m
mwmmrommywhpndbynyWrﬂmmmaﬁor
my decease, Two good Feather beds and bedding with the two good bedsteads
and cords, with one half of the Housshold furniture that belonged to my
late sister Mary Ham, that was left with me at the time of her deceass.

Sth - I will and bequeath to my Deughter Mary Hem, One Hwndred
mmmywhwﬁmmmlmrvm,byv
Executor, two good feathar beds and bedding with two good bedsteads and
aom.uthmmurwamwmmm‘mtmuw
wmw-mryaumud.

6th - xunmmamwwmmmn,mmw
mm,mhum.mmmmep,mmmmmm
mwtmmmdmuwmwm,formwhnm
use and benefit of; one room in my house to their choosing, with fuel
sufficient for one fire, fitly prepered to the door; so long as they or
either of them remain ummarried.

Tth = I will and bequeath to my Two remaining Sons, Benjamin and
lioses Ham, all the remaining part of my Real Estate or landed property,
with all the Stock and Parming utensils and household Furniture of every
name and nature whatsoever that is not bequeathed, %o be equally divided
between them according to the quantity and quality thereof, with all the
Buildings thereon and every appurtenance whatsoever at the time of my

decease.

8th - I do appoint Silas Deme Jr. of Rochester, and Sarah my Daughter,

to be guardians for my son Moses Ham, to watch end care for him and the
property that I have bequeathed to him, ‘
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9th - I will and bequeath that all the remaining property in
noney on hand and money due to me that can or may be collected, be
equally divided betwsen my childron (exclusive of $100- I have paid to
Josaph and $100 T have paid to Abner to be deducted as may appear by
their Receipts) after my just Debts, Iegacies in my lats Father's estate
and my funeral charges are paid by my Executor.

10th - I do constitute and appoint my son Joseph Ham to be my Sole
Executor of this my last Will and Testament, and I do hereby utterly dis-
allow, Revoke and disannul all and every other Will and Testament dated
prior to this; Ratifying and Confimming this to be my last Will and Testa-
ment, B ‘

In Witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and seal, the date and year
before written. ; |

Signed, sealed, published, pronounced and declared by me, the said
Jolmn Ham, in the presence of the subscribers: |

Connery

Josiah Bdgerly
Robert Knight
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INVENTORY

A Varrant 1ssued in coemon form o John Wingate Jr., Benjamin
Connery, and Anthony Peavey, all of Famington, in $he Cownty of
Strafford, fresholders, totake an Inventory and Appraisal of the He-
tate of John Ham, late of sald Parmingion, deceased, Testate; who made
retumn as follows, to wit:

Strafford 8, 5. Pamington, July 10th, 1812,

Agreeable to the annexed warrant we, the wndersignod, have taken
mmmnormmmmhuonmm,murmm
m,w,mm,ummmbywm,mofthw
Will and Testament of sald John Ham, in manner following, namely:-

The Homestead Farm of sald Decessed $2633,00
‘Three axen $65; Two Steers st 37 202
One pair Steers, §20 Pive Cows at £14 ecach 96.
Four Cattle, one yoar old, at §7 each 28,
One Bull, twe years 6ld at $10 each 10,
Two Horses 40.
Thirteen sheep and 5 lambs 26,



LE Strafford County Records
e i Received w 17, 1838
Recorded ILiber 178 Feolio 62
DEED OF ABIGAIL HAM TO ENOCH BUNELR Ex. by E. L. Whiteham

Fecorder

ENOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That, I, Abigail Ham, of
Farmington in the County of Strafford and State of New Hampshire,
Widow, for and in consideration of the swm of four hundred dellars -
tcminhandbdmmdennrwhouéf,nnmdtmlypddby
Enoch Bunker, of the same Parmington, Yeoman - havé remised, released
and forever quitolaimed; and by these presents @o remiss, release
and forever quitclaim unto the said Enoch Dunker, his heirs and
assigns forever, all the right in dower or power of thirds that I
now have of the Farm and Oristmill that was my late husband's,
Benjamin Ham's, De the same on which I now live,

To have and to hold the sald remised premises, with all the
privileges and appurb-nnnm thereunto belonging, to him the sald
Enoch Bunker his heirs and assigns forever. And I do hereby cove-
nant with the said Enoch Dunker that I will warrant and defend the
said pramises to him the said Enoch his heirs and assigns, against
tMlm«wnmmofawpumorpnmmby,

from or under me.

In witnoss whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and seal, this
Sixteenth day of May, in the year of owr Lord one thousand eight hun-
dred and thirty-eight.

Signed, sealed and delivered, in presence of us,

Jersniah Dame _ Abigail Ham
Susan A. Dame

STATE OF HEW HAMPSHIRE, Strafford 5. 8. Hay 16, A.D, 1830
Personally appearing, the above named Abigail Ham acknowledged the
foregoing instrument to Le her voluntary act and deed, Before me,

Jeremiah Tame, Justice of the Peace
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WILLIAM HAM

The New England historic genealogical society of Boston has
received from Dr. Samuel F. Ham of Los Angeles, California, formerly
of this city, the genealogical record of William Ham, who came to
America in 1635 to join a company previously sent from Plymouth,
Eng, by Robert Trelawney, to take possession of Richmonds Island,
Me., and a large tract of territory on the adjacent aminland, granted
to Trelawney by Sir Fernando Gorges.

Ham remained with the Trélawney company but one year, he
and five others, in June 1636, claiming that they were cheated by
the superintendent, leaving Richmonds island, where they had been
engaged in fishing, and coming to Piscataqua, where they all
settled.

Ham was at Exeter in 1645, and came to Portsmouth in 1650,
and the town records show that from 1652 to 1665 he received from
the town four grants of land, aggregating 166 acres, at what is
now known as Freemans point, where he made his home, and where he
died in 1672.

This property was owned and occupied by his descendants,
and known as Hams point, until about 1820, when Peyton R. Freeman,

a lawyer of Portsmouth, having come into possession of 67 acres

of the extreme point, the whole gradually came to be known as
Preemans point, and not far from the same time the island, which

from the early colonial days had been known as Hams island, was
bought by Jeremiah and Mark Noble, and according to custom had its
name changed to Nobles island, which it still bears, though now owned
by the Boston & Maine railroade.

William Ham's house, built probably in 1652, the year he

received his first grant of land from the town, was located a few
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rods southwesterly from where now stands the costly office
building erected last year for the White Mountain paper company,
and the old Ham burying ground, still nearer the office buildiné
and northeasterly from it, is now partially covered by a building
formerly a barn.

The old house was torn down in 1868 or '69, being then a
dilapidated wrecks. Over 200 years of wind and weather, and years
of neglect and decay, naving reduced it to ruin. It was a one-
story building covering considerable space on the ground, with an
immense kitchen, and having timbers big enough for a ship. It
was tenantless for many years before being removed, and there was
no sign that it had ever been painted.

The genealogical record on which Dr. Ham, who is of the
eighth generation in descent from the immigrant William, devoted
mugh time and research for some 20 years, does not attempt to trace
out all of William Ham's descendants, who are scattered all over
the union, but it does bring the records of the local lines of
descendants down to the present time.

Interspersed through it is a large amount of historical
matter relating to members of the family who have achieved Prominence
at different times and places in various lines of usefulness,
end as it is the only record of William Ham's descendants ever
attempted there is much in it of interest to persons wno can trace

their descent from hime

From the Boston Globe -1925-
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